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The construction of the Wessington Springs Opera House occurred be-
tween August 3, 1905 and November 3, 1905. Its main structural features
include an off-white stucco facing and a stepped false front with a semi-
elliptical desiagn element at center. This front hides a gable roof
which has two single stack chimneys, one on each slope. The structure
rests upon a concrete basement that is only slightly visible from the
front but entirely from the back. A Palladial window adorns the front
facade along with three doors of various sizes, two of vhich are for ve-
hicles. Along the sides arz flat-toppned and rectancular windows that
annzar to have been lowarad ahout eizhteen inches. Tha rz2ar has one fTour
nanaled door that once had steps leading to it and a vehicle entrance in
the basemant saction.

The building's rather deteriorated apnpearance does not represent its
nhysical condition, which is sound, with joists measuring 12" by 122" and
18" center to canter. The city put new roofing on the Opera House in recent
years in order to protect the ceiling from water damage. The stage remains
in good condition as do the stevns leading to it.

Originally, the Opega House was thirty-two feet by seventy feet with
nineteen and a half feetibetween the ceiling and floor, and a baggage room,
twelve feet by eighteeh feet, to the rear. The stage was and is thirty-two
feet by sixteen feet and three feet from the floor. The stage had a parlor
setpiece and thrge curtains that displayed a forest scene, a street scene,
and a "Bay of Naples" backdron.

Although the stage remains intact, the seating area which once held
four hundred people, with 256 in regular opera chairs and the balance in
folding, has long since disappeared, as has the front porch and vestibule
with its cement floor and steps leading to it. Entry ways once appeared on
each side of the theater with double doors, swinging both in and out, at
the center. The interior featured a decorative red-colored coping of a
semi-circular design.

In 1920 the city moved the Opera House one block to the west because the
former owner made it a stipulation of the sale. There it served as the city's
fire hall for many years and later became a storage place. Recently, the
Jerauld County Historical Society obtained a lease and plans to restore the
structure to its original appearance.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

At the beginning of this century, many small towns erected opera houses,
and those were invariably the center of culture in each community. Many of
these have long since disappeared; however, a small opera house in Wessington
Springs still exists in South Dakota. This structure is significant locally
in the area of music, education, and theater, for it provided a cultural
center where people could be informed as well as entertained. The building
is also significant as an example of the architecture employed in small town
opera houses across the country. .

Work began on the Opera House on August 3, 1905, with William Brimner,
the builder, Taying the foundation, and he finished the structure in early
November. From the third of that month until 1912 it was the scene of live
entertainment only. Travelling troups performed on its stage, running the
gamut from musical presentations through lectures, three act plays, Chautaqua,
dramatic readings, etc. Some of Wessington Spring's residents today recall
seeing a transient group of actors present plays that they would have never
been able to see had it not been for the Opera House. Also, politicians held
their rallies on its stage, local talent shows were presented there, as well
as dances, box socials, country fair exhibits and band concerts.

From 1912 until 1917, the Opera House served as a silent movie theatre
and from then until its closing in 1920, it became a roller skating rink.
At this time, the city purchased the structure and moved it one block to the
east where it became the local fire station. In recent years the local govern-
ment used it to store old fire department hose wagons. However, a local his-
torical committee has been making plans to restore the structure to its orig-
inal purpose and appearance and has obtained a twenty-five year lease with an
option.

The building had obvious significance to Wessington Springs, especially
in the areas of music, theatre and education. Along with this and the desire
to restore it, the Opera House represents an example of a type of structure
that is gradually being Tost in small towns throughout this country. For
ghese reasons the building should be nominated and accepted on the National

egister.
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